
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
This will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in accordance with The Local Authorities 
and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 

4 December 2020 
 
To:  Members of the Health Services Task and Finish Group (Councillors D Bowater, 
R Goodchild, V Harvey, S Jones, T Morris, S Owen and G Perham) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 
 
Copies to: all Councillors for information 
Central Bedfordshire Councillors: G Perham, C Hegley, T Stock  
D Blackmun (HealthWatch Central Bedfordshire) 
P Coker (Central Bedfordshire Council) 
Dr J Henderson (Bassett Road Surgery) 
N Barnes (Beds Clinical Commissioning Group) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Health Services Task and Finish 
Group to be held on Friday, 18 December 2020 commencing at 2.00 pm in the This 
will be a remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams in 
accordance with The Local Authorities and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Meetings)(England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020.  
 
https://tinyurl.com/y6f4p9p4  
or by telephone: +20 3795 5672 Conf.I.D: 877 177 459# (call charges may apply) 
 
 

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk.  
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 

accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/
https://tinyurl.com/y6f4p9p4


HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP Friday, 18 December 2020 
 

 

 

to declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 

Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of 

it.  

(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item 

on the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that 

item unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and 

granted by the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).  

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g).  
 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 28) 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Task and 

Finish Group meeting held on 5 March 2020 (attached) in accordance with 

Standing Order 12. 

 

(b)  To formally receive the letter and presentation provided by Bedfordshire 

Clinical Commissioning Group in May 2020 in response to the queries 

raised at the above meeting (attached) (previously circulated by email to 

all councillors on 12 May 2020). 

 
 

5.   CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL: INTEGRATED CARE SERVICES 

UPDATE (Pages 29 - 36) 

 

 To receive the report on Integrated Care Services presented to the Central 
Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 28 October 2020 
(attached).  
 

6.   NEXT STEPS  

 

 To discuss and agree any next steps 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



   
   

Page 1 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH SERVICES TASK AND FINISH GROUP 
 

THURSDAY 5 MARCH 2020 AT 1500 HOURS  
 

Present: Councillors  G Perham – in the Chair 
  D Bowater 
  S Jones 
  T Morris 
  R Goodchild 
  S Owen 
  V Harvey 
      

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  S Sandiford (Head of Democratic and Central  
  Services) 
  Dr J Henderson (Primary Care Network &  
  Bassett Road Surgery) 
  Mr S King (Primary Care Network) 
       

       Members of the Public:   1  
 
 
01/HS APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 

  It was proposed and seconded that Councillor G Perham be appointed Chair of 
the Health Services Task and Finish Group.  There were no further nominations.  
On being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor G Perham Chair of the Health Services 
Task and Finish Group. 
 
Councillor Perham took the Chair.   

 
02/HS APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 
 

  It was proposed and seconded that Councillor V Harvey be appointed Vice Chair 
of the Health Services Task and Finish Group.  There were no further 
nominations.  On being put to the vote, the motion was carried. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor V Harvey Vice Chair of the Health 
Services Task and Finish Group.  

 
03/HS APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

  Apologies for absence were received from Central Bedfordshire Councillors C 
Hegley and T Stock, Patricia Coker of Central Bedfordshire Council and Diana 
Blackmun of Healthwatch Central Bedfordshire, all of whom had pre-existing 
calendar commitments. 

 
 For health reasons Cllr B Spurr would be replaced on the group by Councillor G 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Health Services Task & Finish Group 5 March 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 2 

Perham.  
 

04/HS DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 

           Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 

 
 Councillor D Bowater declared an interest as Vice Chair of the Central 

Bedfordshire Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and as a member of the Beds, Luton and Milton Keynes Health 
overview and scrutiny committee. 

 
 05/HS PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
 There were no questions from members of the public. 
 
 06/HS GROUP AIMS  
 

Representatives of the Primary Care Network were thanked for attending and 
invited to give an update on healthcare provision in the town. 
 
The group was advised that the Primary Care Network (PCN) focus was for the 
three GP practices in the town to work together to provide patient services for 
the locality, to benefit local residents. For example, a drop in blood testing clinic 
open to patients of all three practices. It was possible that some diagnostic 
services might be brought in. The PCN was fortunate to have three practices 
across four sites, thereby having sufficient accommodation available. Its focus 
was purely on primary health services, having limited scope and limited budget. 
The creation of PCNs was new and the Leighton-Linslade PCN was felt to be 
more advanced than some others. 
 
The aim of the PCN was felt to be fundamentally different from the aim of the 
Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, which was understood to be the 
development of a “health hub” for the town which would combine primary care 
service and social care services, with the possible addition of mental health 
services and some diagnostic services.  
 
The group agreed that more co-operation between GP practices could only be 
a good thing for patients but it was recognised that long term planning was 
difficult given the lack of clarity about BCCG aspirations.  
 
It was unclear whether the five health hubs proposed for the Central 
Bedfordshire area were all to be operated on a similar model or whether the 
individual needs of each locality would impact on the specification for each hub. 
 
The group agreed that further information should be sought from the 
Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group and an invitation extended to attend 
the next meeting in order to provide the group with greater clarity on health hub 
proposals. 
 
RESOLVED to request from the Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning 

Page 2



Health Services Task & Finish Group 5 March 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 3 

Group:  
1) The original health hub proposal/plan which it was understood had 

been presented to the Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing 
Board. 

2) The latest progress/implementation report on the county-wide health 
hub project. 

3) Clarification on proposed funding arrangements for health hubs. 
4) The specification and intended services to be provided at the 

Dunstable and Biggleswade health hubs 
5) The space/location requirements for the Dunstable and Biggleswade 

health hubs 
6) Attendance at a future meeting of the group. 
 
It was felt by the group that the information to be requested should already be in 
existence and possibly already in the public domain. It was hoped that BCCG 
would be able to provide this quickly and that the information would then help to 
inform further discussions about the possible location, size and specification of 
a health hub in Leighton-Linslade. 
 
Discussion took place regarding whether the Task and Finish group was the 
most appropriate forum or whether the project might be better managed through 
the Leighton-Linslade Partnership (Joint) Committee. It was noted that the 
Partnership Committee already had a significant remit and its meetings would 
probably not allow for sufficient time to discuss this specific matter in adequate 
detail. No changes would be made to current arrangements. 
 
It was suggested that the minutes of group meetings also be presented to the 
Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
The group discussed the proposed aims of the Task and Finish Group. On being 
put to the vote, the following was agreed (four in favour, one against, one 
abstention).  
 
RESOLVED that aims of the Health Services Task and Finish Group would 
be: 
 
1.     To press Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) and 
Central Bedfordshire Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) to bring 
forward proposals urgently for a Leighton-Linslade Health Hub as part of 
a planned approach to improved localisation of hospital services for local 
residents and to secure the town’s fair share of Government investment in 
the localisation agenda. 
  
2.     To press for the development of that Plan to include local GPs and 
professions ancillary, patient groups and the Town Council, to promote, 
encourage and support early and regular consultation with residents of the 
parish in terms of the services to be provided and the location of the Hub. 
  
3.     To pursue, in consultation with the three groups mentioned above, 
that this comprehensive Plan shall include: 

Page 3



Health Services Task & Finish Group 5 March 2020 
                                                                                                                                                                            
 

Page 4 

(a)   A Leighton-Linslade Hub providing a range of services that are 
currently provided by hospitals or not at all 
(b)   The accommodation and investment requirements of existing GP 
surgeries in the town 
(c)   Planned GP surgeries serving the new developments on the eastern 
side of the town and also Linslade residents, who used to have two GP 
surgeries but now had none. 
 
A date/time for a subsequent meeting was discussed but this was likely to be 
dependent on availability of a representative of the Bedfordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group to attend. Group members would be kept advised by 
email.  

 
 
  

The meeting closed at 1620 hours. 
 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 MARCH 2020. 

  

 

 

Chair                          TBC 2020     

Page 4



 

 

 
7th May 2020 

 

Mr M Saccoccio 

Leighton-Linslade Town Council 

Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

Silsoe 

Bedfordshire 

MK45 4HR 

 

 

 

Dear Mr Saccoccio 
 
Re: Health Services in Leighton-Linslade 
 
Thank you for your letter dated 3rd April, which has been forwarded to me as the lead Associate Director for Estates 
and Primary Care in Central Bedfordshire.  
 
We would be happy to attend a future meeting of the Town Council's task and finish group, along with our Primary 
Care Network colleagues, to provide an update around the Central Bedfordshire Integrated Health and Care Hub 
Programme, which is overseen by the Central Bedfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board. I would suggest that most of 
your questions could be best answered as part of that discussion, and it would be useful to discuss how the Town 
Council would like to be involved in our wider efforts to improve health and wellbeing for Leighton-Linslade residents.  
 
As you've noted, the CCG's efforts have had to be temporarily refocused around supporting the Covid19 emergency, 
so we will need to agree an appropriate date for attendance over the next few months.  
 
In the meantime however, please find below some information in response to your questions: 
 
1) The original health hub proposal/plan which it was understood had been presented to the Central 
Bedfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 
 
All reports shared with the Central Bedfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board are available on the Council website: 
https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/info/31/meetings/223/health_and_wellbeing_board_-
_meetings_and_agendas/2   
 
 
2) The latest progress/implementation report on the county-wide health hub project 
 
The most recent update provided to the Health & Wellbeing Board is attached. The timescales in the report have 
unfortunately been impacted by the Covid19 emergency, and the CCG and Council will need to review the programme 
plan and reassess the planned timescales accordingly.  
 
 
3) Clarification on proposed funding arrangements for health hubs 
 
Central Bedfordshire Council have set aside capital funding in their Medium Term Financial Plan towards the delivery 
of the proposed Hubs in Dunstable and Biggleswade. This funding will be subject to approval of the detailed Business 
Cases, and will be based on assurance around a suitable rental return from tenants of the building. Given that many 
of the tenants will be healthcare providers, and relocation into the Hub will result in increased estates costs for the 
local healthcare system, the final go-ahead for these schemes will also be dependent on approval of the Business 
Cases by the CCG, as the commissioner of local healthcare services. For Dunstable, this is all being worked through 
between organisations as part of the development of the Outline Business Case, and will hopefully provide a helpful 
model to draw upon for the other Hubs.  
 
 
 

Primary Care Directorate 

BLMK Commissioning Collaborative 

Capability House 

Silsoe 

Beds 

MK45 4HR 

 

Tel: 07727 113749 

Email: nikki.barnes1@nhs.net 

Website: www.bedfordshireccg.nhs.uk 

Page 5

https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/info/31/meetings/223/health_and_wellbeing_board_-_meetings_and_agendas/2
https://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/info/31/meetings/223/health_and_wellbeing_board_-_meetings_and_agendas/2


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Funding arrangements for the further three proposed Hub facilities in West Mid Bedfordshire, Houghton Regis and 
Leighton Buzzard are not yet confirmed. CCGs do not hold capital budgets which can used for developing schemes 
like these, but there are a number of other funding options. These include: 
 

 trying to access national NHS capital funding which is periodically available for local health systems to bid for 

 third party capital investment in lieu of a guaranteed rental income (this could come from a public organisation 
such as the Council or through NHS-backed schemes to access alternative investment) 

 contributions from housing developers. 
 
 
4) The specification and intended services to be provided at the Dunstable and Biggleswade health hubs 
 
A detailed service model has been developed with local health and social care providers for the proposed Hub in 
Dunstable. It is anticipated that the services to operate out of the Hub will include: 
 

 3 of the town centre GP practices, and a range of services to be shared between the six GP practices in the 
Chiltern Hills Primary Care Network (e.g. social prescribing link workers, Clinical Pharmacists) 

 Adult and children's social services 

 A range of adult community nursing and therapy services, including phlebotomy (blood testing) 

 A range of community healthcare and mental health services for children and young people 

 A range of mental health services for adults and older people 

 Some specialist community services, such as Musculoskeletal Services, specialist nurses for heart failure 
and other long term conditions 

 Possibly a community pharmacy - subject to interest from local providers 

 A café open to the wider community, and space which can be utilised by prevention services and local 
community organisations to support the wider health and wellbeing of the local community (e.g. support 
groups/ leisure and arts activities). 

 
It may be helpful to note that a similar range of services are already available to the residents of Leighton-Linslade in 
the local community. The concept behind the proposed Hubs is around helping these services to come together to 
deliver a strengthened and integrated offer to local people, and to provide additional capacity where this is needed, 
including in line with housing growth. It is expected that local health and care teams can continue to work towards 
achieving these benefits in advance of the delivery of the Hubs, and we would really value the Town Council's ongoing 
involvement in wider initiatives around preventing ill health, and improving the health and wellbeing of local people.   
 
The NHS has undergone a huge digital transformation as part of the response to the Covid19 emergency; it is 
estimated nationally that in response to Covid19, general practice has moved from carrying out c.90% of consultations 
with patients as face-to-face appointments to managing more than 85% of consultations remotely. If this trend 
continues, as is expected, we will need to review our Hub plans in light of this significant change in practice. The GP 
practices in Leighton Buzzard have greater capacity in their surgery premises than in many other parts of Central 
Bedfordshire, and a sustained reduction in face-to-face consultations will further improve this position. Therefore there 
is plenty of scope to look at how services can work together more closely and even more effectively from within the 
buildings they already occupy in the meantime.  
 
It may be worth noting that there are no current plans to relocate hospital-based outpatient services or complex 
diagnostics (e.g. X-ray, MRI, CT) into the Dunstable Hub, though it is hoped that an enhanced and expanded primary 
care service may help to prevent some referrals needing to be made to hospital services. Outpatient services have 
also experienced a major change in their delivery over the last few months, so it is very likely that far lower numbers 
of people will need to travel to hospital for face-to-face appointments in future.  
 
 
5) The space/location requirements for the Dunstable and Biggleswade health hubs 
  
The current specification for the proposed Dunstable Hub is just under 7,000m². This will vary significantly for each 
Hub, and we currently estimate that the Hubs in Central Bedfordshire may range in size from 2,000-7,000m² 
depending on the number of staff to be based in the building and the primary care space requirement. This will be 
worked through in detail as part of the development of the Outline Business Cases for each Hub.  
 
 

Page 6



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
We hope that this provides some helpful information in the meantime, and look forward to discussing further with you 
in due course. As this is relates to a joint initiative with Central Bedfordshire Council, I have shared a copy of your 
letter and this response with the Council for their information.  
 
 
 Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Nikki Barnes 
Associate Director for Transformation & Integration 
Bedfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group / BLMK Commissioning Collaborative 
 

Cc.  Dr John Henderson, GP and Clinical Director of Leighton Buzzard Primary Care Network 

 

  

Page 7



 

 

 

Page 8



Patricia Coker
Nikki Barnes  

Integrated Health & 
Care Hubs

P
age 9



Introduction

• Assurance around 
progress

• Further information 
around the next steps 
and timescales

• Update around risks 
and issues

P
age 10



Vision

• To deliver better care, locally in premises 
that responds to new ways of working and 
fit for the future.

• Enables transformation of Primary Care in 
Central Bedfordshire

• Local authority services co-located with 
health services to deliver integrated 
outcomes for people.

• Services locally accessible to all our 
residents when they need them.  

• Planning for the future, more residents, 
digitally enabled to access services. 

• Changing how we work together.  
Multidisciplinary teams as well as other 
wellbeing services – and residents.

• Delivering at pace for now and future 
population.

• Responding to Housing growth through a 
Hub and Spoke approach.

P
age 11



The case 
for 
change

Significant population 
growth and changing 

needs.

Unsustainable health 
care delivery model.

National focus on shifting 
balance of care away 

from hospitals to 
treatment and care 

closer to people’s homes. 

Constrained primary and 
community care estate.

Significant workforce and 
resilience challenges.

Need to transform 
Primary Care in Central 

Bedfordshire

P
age 12



How will Hubs meet 
the Vision?

• Local care and support, accessible to all our residents when 
they need them

• Establishing a focal point for integrated services in localities 

• Access to enhanced services in the community, e.g. minor 
injury and minor illness services, clinics to support patients 
with long term conditions, some services that would have 
previously been accessed in a hospital setting, 
midwife/health visitors and other specialist consultations 

• Extended services on a 7-day a week basis, face to face out 
of hours consultations.

• Focal point in neighbourhoods for Voluntary and Carer
support services

• Public Health and prevention services, e.g. stop smoking 
services, NHS Health Checks, lifestyle hubs 

• Wellbeing Services and community mental health services 

• Information Centres and community Cafés

• More resilient services.

P
age 13



Chiltern Vale Hub

P
age 14



Chiltern Vale Hub
Programme Milestones Timeline

Planning Pre-App End July (Submitted End of August)

RIBA Stage 1 Preparation of Brief Mid July (Completed September)

RIBA Stage 2 Concept Design sign off Mid/End September (Underway)

RIBA Stage 3 Developed Design Start End September 

RIBA Stage 4 Developed Design Complete Early December

Submit Planning Application December

RIBA Stage 4 Technical Design Start December/ January 2020

RIBA Stage 4 Technical Design Complete April 2020

Start on Site End August/ Start September 2020 

Completion End 2022

P
age 15



Chiltern 
Vale Hub

• What Have We Done

• Detailed service and activity modelling with 
stakeholders (40+ services expected to deliver 
services from the Hub).

• Patient consultation. 

• Site options appraisal.

• Site Surveys and Pre-App submitted to Planning. 

• Service Model options appraisal and Schedule of 
Accommodation developed.

• Concept designs and draft Stage 2 designs 
developed. 

• What Are We Doing?

• Reviewing Stage 2 designs. 

• Developing NHS/Health and Social Care System 
Business Case.

• Preparing for Planning Application submission.

• Ongoing stakeholder engagement. 

P
age 16



Chiltern 
Vale Hub

• What Do We Need To Do?

• Stage 2 Sign-Off

• Commence formal negotiations with tenants 
around occupation arrangements

• Stage 3 & Planning

P
age 17



•
Integrated Long 
Term Condition 
Management (& 

potential for 
outreach of specialist 

clincians

Prevention, Early 
Intervention & 

Self Care

Primary Care at 
scale (inc. room for 
growth & training)

Planned Care

Multi-disciplinary 
frail/elderly care

Same Day and 
Extended Access

Children’s & 
Maternity 
Services

Mental Health 
and Addiction 

Services

Integrated 
Reception & 

Waiting Areas

PRIMARY CARE NETWORK
• Need-led population 

health management
• Data driven

• Integrated health and 
social care – building 

designed for maximum 
integration

Community 
Area & Café & 

Pharmacy 

Learning 
Disabilities

Minor 
Surgery

Adult Community 
Health Clinics & 
Therapies – inc
Phlebotomy & 

Podiatry

Online 

Access
to 

Services

Base for 
Out of 
Hours 

Service

Social/ 
leisure 

activities

Voluntary 
sector

Mental Health –
Wellbeing Svc, Older 

Persons, CMHT, 
memory assessment, 
dementia intensive 

support

Adult  
Social Care

Parking for 
mobile 

investigations

Shared 
touchdown, 

admin space & 
meeting 
rooms

Children’s  
Social Care

Chiltern Vale – Preferred Service Model

P
age 18



Chiltern Vale 
– Site 
Surveys

Arboricultural Survey
Archaeological Assessment
CCTV Drainage Survey
Ecological Appraisal
Flood Risk Assessment
Preliminary Ground Investigation
Topographical Survey
Underground Services Survey
Underground Utilities Search
UXO Assessment

P
age 19



•

Integrated Health & Care Hub + 3 residential buildings 

P
age 20



Chiltern Vale Hub – Concept Designs

Refining high-level 
designs to maximise 
opportunities for 
integration between 
services

P
age 21



Chiltern 
Vale Hub 
– Key 
Issues

2-month slippage in programme – due 
to complexity of Service Model. 

Preferred Service Model still subject to 
detailed negotiations with tenants and 
approval of NHS business case, so 
potential for further iterations of 
design.

No tenant is guaranteed until 
Agreement for Leases have been signed 

P
age 22



Ivel Valley Hub

• Negotiations close to conclusion in relation to 
Biggleswade Hospital site

• Work on developing Service Model and 
Schedule of Accommodation for Ivel Valley 
Hub to resume 

• Programme Plan anticipates delivery of Hub 
2022/23

• Further planning required in relation to 
primary care premises in South Ivel Valley 
area (Shefford, Lower Stondon, Arlesey, 
Stotfold) to ensure sufficient capacity to 
respond to housing-led population growth –
as set out in Local Plan Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan. 

P
age 23



Leighton Buzzard, West Mid 
Bedfordshire and Houghton 
Regis Hubs

• Reserve line in MTFP for Leighton Buzzard & 
West Mid Bedfordshire.

• Stakeholder engagement undertaken.

• Reviewed the needs and site options in each 
locality – including “spokes”.

• NHS Strategic Outline Case (SOC) complete, 
progressing through governance structures 
within BCCG. 

• Next stage will be to secure funding to develop 
NHS Outline Business Cases (OBC) in phases, 
and to review Section 106 contributions in 
relation to Houghton Regis and Leighton 
Buzzard.

P
age 24



Learning from other places
Hull Integrated Care Centre 

Its key purpose: to provide a patient ‘check-up’ facility to prevent admissions to Hull’s major hospitals. 

The emphasis is on speedy tests, diagnosis and treatment from doctors, nurses, clinicians and therapists.

The Integrated Care Centre itself will offer:

• Rapid access assessment unit to see a senior doctor

• Diagnosis services

• Services to support long term conditions

• Rehabilitation, reablement (gym facilities) and physiotherapy

• Occupational therapy and clinic appointments with hospital specialists

• Services offered by the voluntary sector

• Multi-agency team to support people in their own homes

• Adult social care services

• Alongside the Integrated Care Centre, a housing development is also taking place. 54 ‘supported 
living’ bungalows have had plans approved and are awaiting construction. The plans were drawn up 
by a housing association that specialises in providing homes for people with additional care needs.

Learning from elsewhere

Visits to Hubs in other areas, sharing learning across & doing work once where we can, e.g. Bloom –
Parkview, Bromley by Bow, Sudbury. Alignment & learning input via National Association of Primary Care.

P
age 25



West Mid Beds 
IHCH target 
completion

Houghton Regis 
IHCH target 
completion 

Ivel Valley IHCH
Completion

2019 2022 2023 2024

Overarching programme
(Subject to Business Case Approvals & funding)

2020 2021

Dunstable Hub ConstructionComplete Dunstable OBC & FBC

Ivel Valley Service Model, designs  & 
OBC

IV FBC IV Construction 

WMB Service Model, 
designs  & OBC WMB FBC

Dunstable  
Integrated 
Health and 
Care Hub

WMB Construction

LB S106 
negotiations LB Service 

Model
HR S106 

negotiations

Leighton 
Buzzard 

IHCH target 
completion

LB Construction

LB S106 
negotiations

LB OBC & FBC

HR Service Model, designs & OBC

HR FBC

HR Construction

P
age 26



Next steps – as currently planned

• OBC completion for Dunstable & finalise the design.

• Develop Service Model, Schedule of Accommodation (SOA)  & 
OBC for Ivel Valley IHCH

• Commence negotiations with developers around capital 
contributions for Houghton Regis & Leighton Buzzard IHCHs.

• Secure land south of Vandyke Rd, Leighton Buzzard

• Support dedicated PCN-led (Primary Care Network) project in 
Leighton Buzzard around maximising existing assets to support 
integrated pathways

• Develop Service Model & SOA to inform planning for West Mid 
Beds IHCH 

• Continue to pursue Capital contributions via ICS.

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28



Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board  
 

28 October 2020 

Integrated Care System update  
Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes   

 

Responsible Officer:  Richard Carr, Chief Executive  
Richard.carr@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

 
Advising Officer:  Julie Ogley, Director of Social Care, Health and 

Housing   
Juile.Ogley@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Presenting Officers: 
Patricia Coker, Head of Service 
patricia.coker@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk 

Public  

 
Purpose of this report. 
 

1. To update the Health and Wellbeing Board on key developments within 
the Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK) Integrated Care 
System (ICS). 
 

2. To provide an update on the delivery programme for Integrated Health 
and Care Hubs. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 

1. Note the System-wide challenges and response as a result of COVID-19 
2. Receive an update on developments within BLMK ICS.  
3. Note progress on the Integrated Health and Care Hubs Programme. 

  

 

Background 

1. Bedfordshire Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK) is one of the first wave 
Integrated Care Systems (ICS) in the country.  The ICS brings together 
NHS commissioners, providers and local authorities to meet the needs of 
their local population. 

 

 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Richard.carr@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:Juile.Ogley@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:patricia.coker@centralbedfordshire.gov.uk


2. BLMK Integrated Care System has set five priority areas: 

i. Prevention  
ii. Primary, Community and Social Care 
iii. Sustainable Secondary Care 
iv. Digital Programme  
v. Systems Integration. 

3. The focus of the ICS partnership against these priorities are set out 
below. 

 

4. Progress against these priorities in Central Bedfordshire is monitored by 
the Transformation Board on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
through the Place Based Plan. 

5. This report builds on July 2020 update to the Board. 

 

COVID-19 Pandemic  

6. The system-wide partnership response to the Coronavirus (COVID-19) 
pandemic challenge continues.  Health Services are moving into a 
recovery phase as well as continuing to plan for a surge in the virus and 
winter pressures.  The impact of COVID-19 continues to be felt within the 
social care sector, particularly with challenges for the adult social care 
market.  Since March 2020, the support for vulnerable people through 
the Community Hub has included:  

 

Page 30



• The delivery of 1676 emergency good parcels for 2404 residents 

• Financial support to 290 residents  

• Prescriptions and medications collected for 382 people 

• 165 referrals made to Citizens Advice Bureau 

• 132 people referred for more complex support 
  

Although the Hub was called upon much less over the summer months, 
there are indications that it may well be called upon much more extensively 
in the foreseeable future as we enter a second wave of infection. 

7. ELFT Mental Health Services, through the Bedfordshire Wellbeing Service 

has put online a range of Covid-19 specific webinars and workshops. The 
Service also prioritises NHS and Care Home staff referrals.  

8. Support of the Voluntary and Community Sector remains a key part of the 
systemwide response to COVID-19 and has been central to meeting the 
challenge.  

9. Bedfordshire, Luton and Milton Keynes (BLMK) NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) carried out a public survey, in June to find 
out how the pandemic has affected people’s health and well-being, and 
their personal experience of the way health and care services are being 
delivered. Results from the survey which concluded on 21 June 2020 will 
be shared with the ICS, when published. 

 

BLMK ICS structural changes 

10. Following the appointment of the independent chair to BLMK, further 
changes are planned to strengthen the core team with the appointment 
of a full-time Executive Lead.  This is a mandated requirement for all 
Integrated Care Systems but also takes account of the imminent 
retirement of Central Bedfordshire’s Chief Executive, who has been the 
Senior Responsible Officer since May 2017.   

11. Recruitment is underway and is expected to be completed by the end of 
September 2020. At a regional level, NHSE/I has appointed a Lead 
System Director to better co-ordinate the regional team support to each 
of the STPs and ICSs with the East of England, as NHSE/I moves to a 
more embedded assurance model. For BLMK, this is Wayne Bartlett-
Syree. 

 

Recovery Planning across BLMK 

12. Guidance and targets were issued to the NHS organisations on the 31 
July 2020 to inform national recovery plans submissions in September: 
draft plans were submitted on 1 September with final plans due on 21 
September.  The focus is to return non-Covid health services to near-
normal levels, prepare for winter pressures as well as take account of 
lessons learnt, during Covid including supporting staff and action on 
inequalities and prevention. 

Page 31



13. The national submission focuses on service demand as reflected in 
referrals, acute and diagnostics activity, acute bed capacity, and 
associated ambitions for elective care, cancer, mental health, and 
learning disabilities and autism.    

14. The draft plan for BLMK is projecting that cancer services, hospital 
outpatients and all diagnostic services, with the exception of endoscopy, 
will recover to 100% of pre-Covid levels.  Elective hospital services are 
expected to return to circa 90% of pre-Covid levels (in line with the 
national target) and endoscopy services are projected to be around 70% 
recovered.   

15. The plan also outlines measures put in place to prioritise patients based 
on clinical need, and communication and monitoring of patients whose 
planned care was disrupted by Covid. 

16. The wider aspects of recovery, encompassing primary care, community 
services, social care and winter planning will be covered through a 
locally embedded self-assurance framework requiring regular upward 
reporting on recovery. 

17. Recovery planning is being progressed through the groups established 
during the pandemic response and brings together health and social 
care services in order to enable a system-wide response between clinical 
teams, providers, the CCGs, local authorities and the voluntary sector 
operating as part of local systems. What is unknown at this stage, is the 
impact on the recovery of services of a second wave of the virus and the 
current challenges with the testing programme. 

 

Digital update 

18. Through and following Wave 1 of the COVID-19 pandemic, all partner 
organisations across BLMK embraced new working practices to support 
residents to receive health and care with staff delivering services 
remotely and always safely.  

19. As this has been undertaken at pace, a review is now underway to 
consider which practices to embed or accelerate to support new ways of 
working in health and care delivery.    

20. In addition, there is continuing progress to implement the BLMK local 
health and shared care record across the two health economies, so that 
service provision within health and care is seamless with secure 
information available to care professionals at the point of care. 

21. Whilst there is a national acknowledgment of the need to support care 
homes, within BLMK a digitisation programme for care homes was 
already underway. Much progress has been made to provide secure 
email addresses for the homes as well as audit of WIFI capability, to 
support access to health and care services remotely.   

 

 

Page 32



22. Currently in Central Bedfordshire, 97% of care homes now have access 
to a secure NHS email address which will enable them to exchange 
information directly with health care professionals. Support is being 
offered to the remaining care homes, including care homes for people 
with learning disabilities, to ensure that NHS email addresses are used. 

23. Access to mobile devices to support virtual consultations is being 
accelerated to 30% of care homes, ahead of the national support 
programme.   

24. As part of the acceleration programme, BLMK ICS is also fully engaged 
with the ‘think 111’ programme, a new NHS system for urgent but not 
emergency care, which will help route residents to the most appropriate 
care setting, thereby reducing winter pressures in hospital settings.   

25. Formal notification of a successful bid to support residents in domiciliary 
settings, care homes and with targeted health conditions across our full 
footprint is currently anticipated. 

 

Population Health Management 

26. A Population Health Management Programme, which was paused due to 
COVID-19, is due to commence. This centrally funded 20-week 
programme aims to facilitate joint working in systems to develop robust 
population health management (PHM) capability, to drive local service 
delivery through Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and the wider 
community, acute, mental health, social care and third sector partners.   

27. Local integrated teams will need to be supported, through risk 
stratification, to identify key population groups who require targeted, 
proactive multi-disciplinary support so that they receive sustainable 
personalised care reflecting their needs. The risk stratification will also 
identify population groups awaiting elective hospital appointments to 
consider alternative out of hospital and virtual integrated models of care 
that could be deployed to support them. 

 

Integrated Health and Care Hubs  

28. Work on developing Integrated Health and Care Hubs which was paused 
in response to system pressures due to COVID-19, has resumed. The 
system-wide focus on responding to the pandemic has had an impact on 
the delivery timeline for the hubs. The risk of further delay remains as the 
health and care system responds to current or future challenges posed 
by the COVID-19 pandemic.   

29. Chiltern Vale (Dunstable) A revised schedule of accommodation to 
reflect new ways of working, as a result of COVID-19 and increasing use 
of digital consultation systems, has been produced.   

30. A full planning application was submitted on 15 June 2020 and is 
scheduled for consideration at the meeting of Development Management 
Committee (DMC) on 14 October 2020.   

Page 33



31. Dedicated webpages have been set up to provide updates and a 
platform for residents to submit their views. 
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/dunstable-hub 

32. Ivel Valley (Biggleswade). Key providers are now able to engage in the 
process to develop the service model and a first draft of the schedule of 
accommodation.  Work on the Ivel Valley Hub was paused due to service 
providers being unavailable whilst they responded to the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

33. Subject to capacity, work will also commence on developing the service 
model and schedule of accommodation for West Mid Beds Hub. 

34. Further work is underway to scope the delivery timeline and 
dependencies for the Houghton Regis and Leighton Buzzard hubs. 

Financial and Risk Implications 

35. A key priority of the ICS is to secure financial sustainability across the 
BLMK footprint. In the context of the BLMK Five Year Plan, intense work 
is now taking place on the more detailed operational plan for 2020/21. 

36. Funding for two Health and Care hubs has been included in the 
Council’s Capital Programme.  The affordability of the revenue 
implications of the hubs (for potential occupants) will be determined once 
the detailed costings are available and as the Heads of Terms are 
negotiated.  Other key risks include ensuring enough stakeholder 
capacity to engage with the programme, while faced with competing 
priorities; and availability of the capital to deliver the full programme.  

Legal Implications  

37. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Governance and Delivery Implications 

38. The ICS is led by a Chief Executive Officer Group and has responsibility 
for ensuring resources are in place to produce the plan.  The Chief 
Executive of this Council is the Senior Responsible Officer for BLMK ICS 
and is the chair of Central Bedfordshire Transformation Board, a sub-
group of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  

39. Each local authority area ‘Place’ in the ICS will also produce a five-year 
place plan, which will be overseen by their Transformation Board or their 
equivalent. The priorities of the ICS are consistent with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s Health and Wellbeing Strategic priorities. 

40. The Hub programme is overseen by the Hub Development Steering 
Group, comprising directors from BCCG and Central Bedfordshire 
Council. The Steering Group is supported by a Programme Group 
comprising colleagues across the Council; in Adult Social Care, Assets, 
Major Projects, Children Services, strategic and primary care leads from 
BCCG. Decisions on Council funding will be made through the Council’s 
Executive. 

Page 34

http://www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk/dunstable-hub


Equalities Implications 

41. The PSED requires public bodies to consider all individuals when 
carrying out their day to day work – in shaping policy, in delivering 
services and in relation to their own employees.  It requires public bodies 
to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment 
and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity, and foster good 
relations between in respect of nine protected characteristics; age 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation. Consideration of equality implications will be built into the 
development of the Place Plans and the 5 Year Plan. 

Sustainability Implications 

42. There are no negative sustainability implications as a result of this report. 

43. ICS Programmes and initiatives will take account of Central 
Bedfordshire’s Central Bedfordshire Sustainability Plan (2020-2030) and 
helps to create multiple benefits for local communities and businesses. 

44. The ICS is focused on improving outcomes and the way health and care 
services are delivered for the local population. 

45. The ICS supports the delivery of key infrastructure projects which will 
benefit residents of Central Bedfordshire. 

46. The Integrated Health and Care Hubs Programme brings health and 
care services closer to where people live. Design and location of the 
Hubs will have due regard to requirements for accessibility and local 
connectivity.   

 

Implications for Work Programme 

47. The work programme will be developed to ensure that progress on 
producing and delivering the Place Plan, is effectively monitored. 

48. Progress on the Hub Programme will continue to be reported as part of 
the ICS Update report. 

Conclusion and next Steps 

49. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the system update in 
response to COVID-19. 

50. Final Recovery Plans for the Health and Care System is due for 
submission to NHSE/I due on 21 September.   

51. There is continuing progress to implement the BLMK local health and 
shared care record.  In addition, digitisation support to care homes 
continues with more care homes now using an NHS email address to 
engage with healthcare professionals.   

 

 

Page 35

https://centralbedfordshire.app.box.com/s/yf5w3nsu5p4bnre6zodjxvb8bpaami82/folder/122062788089


52. Work on the Hub programme has resumed.  A planning application has 
been submitted for the Dunstable Hub.  As a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic, the timeline for the overall Hub programme will be reviewed at 
the next meeting of the Hub Steering Group.   

53. The Health and Wellbeing Board will continue to be updated on the work 
of the ICS and implications for Central Bedfordshire.   

Page 36


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Letter to Leighton-Linslade Council 07.05.20
	Hub Presentation for CB HWB October 19 - Integrated Hub Programme

	5 CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL: INTEGRATED CARE SERVICES UPDATE
	Central Bedfordshire Health and Wellbeing Board
	Background
	COVID-19 Pandemic
	BLMK ICS structural changes
	Recovery Planning across BLMK
	Digital update
	Population Health Management
	Integrated Health and Care Hubs
	Financial and Risk Implications
	Legal Implications
	Governance and Delivery Implications
	Equalities Implications
	Sustainability Implications
	Implications for Work Programme


